ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 19, 2009
3:05 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve John Coghill
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 110
" An Act relating to t he practice and i censing of
psychol ogi sts. "
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 110

SHORT TITLE: PSYCHOLOG STS' LI CENSI NG & PRACTI CE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

02/ 04/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 09 (H) HSS, L&C
03/ 19/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3:00 PM CAP| TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

MARI ANNA CARPENETI, Staff

to Representative Bob Herron

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 110 on behalf of the prine
sponsor, Representative Herron, and responded to questions.

DR. LORI N BRADBURY, Chair

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 19, 2009



Board of Psychol ogi st and Psychol ogi cal Associ ate Exam ners
Bet hel , Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions regarding HB 110.

DR PHI LLI P BAKER, Legislative Chair

Al aska Psychol ogi cal Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 110.

DI ANE CASTO, Prevention & Early Interventi on Manager
Prevention and Early Intervention Section

Di vi sion of Behavioral Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke about HB 110.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3: 05: 06 PM
CO CHAI R WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services

St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 05 p. m
Representatives Keller, Herron, Seaton, and Hol nes were present

at the call to order. Representatives Lynn and Ci ssna arrived
as the neeting was in progress. Representative Coghill was
excused.

HB 110- PSYCHOLOG STS' LI CENSI NG & PRACTI CE

3:05: 39 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 110, "An Act relating to the practice and
i censi ng of psychol ogists.”

3:06: 28 PM

CO CHAI R HERRQON, speaking as the prime sponsor of HB 110, said
that the bill was at the request of his constituency.

3:07: 05 PM

MARI ANNA CARPENETI, Staff to Representative Bob Herron, Al aska
State Legislature, said that HB 110 was introduced at the behest
of the Board of Psychol ogi sts and Psychol ogi cal Associates. She

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 19, 2009



expl ained that HB 110 referred to the licensing of psychol ogical
associ at es. She noted that the nobst inportant change was to
anend AS 08. 86. 180(b) which provided exenptions to the |icensing
|aw. She opined that the current statute was vague, and offered
an inpression that enployees of the governnment, educational
institutions, or private agencies could work as a psychol ogi st
wi thout a license. She noted that this was a public safety
i ssue. She said that the Board of Psychologists and
Psychol ogi cal Associates suggested that the only exenption be
for school psychologists, under very |imted conditions. She
noted that Section 2 of HB 110 also allowed an exenption for an
enpl oyee of the federal governnment while on the discharge of
official duties, which clarified the legal doctrine of federa
pre-enption. She summarized the two additional changes: renova
of the time limt for l|icensure reexam nation; expansion of the
definition "to practice psychology” to now include wunpaid
services, which would conform the statute to the Anerican
Psychol ogi cal Association's nodel |icensure act.

3:09: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked to clarify that Section 2(b)(1)
woul d not have any negative effect on the University of Al aska,
non-profits, Departnent of Health and Social Services, or the
muni ci palities.

3:10: 38 PM

M5. CARPENETI expressed that it would only have a positive
affect. She reiterated that HB 110 only dealt wth people
of fering psychol ogical services. She conpared psychol ogi cal
associates to md-level providers. She declared that HB 110
woul d ensure the qualifications for psychol ogi cal associ ates.

3:12:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there were any other |obs
requiring these qualifications which this bill would inpact.

M5. CARPENETI said there were not.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there were jobs that had this
exam nation as criteria for enploynent. He asked for

clarification of who HB 110 woul d affect.

M5. CARPENETI, in response to Representative Seaton, said that
the bill was preventative. She explained that in the |ast year,

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 19, 2009



there had been two cease and desist orders for individuals
practicing wthout the proper |icensing.

3:16: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Section 1, line 8, of HB 110,
and asked for a definition for psychonetry.

3:17:17 PM

DR. LORIN  BRADBURY, Chair, Board of Psychol ogi st and
Psychol ogi cal Associate Exam ners, in response to Representative
Seaton, said that HB 110 required licensing, and clarified the
anbi guous | anguage of the statute, in order to nmeke it easier
for interpretation and enforcenent.

3:21: 08 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked if the state had taken action against
anyone practicing as psychol ogi sts.

DR. BRADBURY replied that the Board would only receive a notice
of action from the investigative unit, which would include a
letter to cease and desist. He noted that nanmes were not
reveal ed, unless there was a resistance to conpli ance.

3:22: 09 PM

CO- CHAI R HERRON commented that HB 110 would ensure that no one
wi thout a license could bill for the service.

DR. BRADBURY said that the Board requested public clarification
that no one could practice psychology in Alaska wthout a
license.

3:23:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a l|license exam nation requirenent
was to have a recommendation from a licensed psychol ogist,
regardl ess of the degree an individual had earned.

DR. BRADBURY replied that an application had to be nmade to the
licensing board, and then, if the educational requirenments were

met, the board would approve the exam nation. He further
explained that a psychological associate license required 2
years of supervised practice, and a psychologist |I|icense

requi red an additional year of supervision.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 19, 2009



3:25:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there were any other jobs that
would require this license. He specified that he wanted to know
who was being restricted fromjobs with this bill.

DR. BRADBURY replied that it would prevent soneone from stating
that they were a psychol ogist and having a client. He expl ained
that the l|icensing board was responsible for the protection of
t he public.

3:28: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said that many health problens included
mental health problens. She noted that the tribal health system
had community health aides and behavioral health aides, and she
expressed concern that HB 110 would jeopardize these necessary
posi tions.

DR. BRADBURY responded that it would not inpact these positions,
and that HB 110 would only affect those referring to thenselves
as psychol ogi sts or psychol ogi cal associates, w thout the proper
| i censi ng.

3:31: 04 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER noted that "psychologist”" was not well defined
in the statute. He asked about the exenption for
psychot her api sts and psychoanal ysts.

3:31:55 PM

DR. BRADBURY said that HB 110 did not address those exenptions,
al t hough he noted that it was standard | anguage fromthe 1987
APA Model Act for State Licensure of Psychol ogists. He reported
that an updated nodel act was currently being drafted. He
referred to AS 08.86.180(d), which guaranteed that other
Iicensed health professionals were not inpacted.

3:33:21 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER referred to the earlier nmentioned criteria for a
psychol ogi st which included therapy given to "a client,"” yet, he
noted in Section 3 that "for a fee" was proposed to be renoved
from AS 08. 86. 230(6). He expressed concern that this proposa
to anend allowed for too broad a context.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 19, 2009



3:34:52 PM

DR. PH LLIP BAKER, Legislative Chair, Alaska Psychol ogical
Associ ation, expressed that the current statute allowed for
consuner vulnerability that should be clarified and amended. He
reported that the psychologist services were controlled and
defined and that services were not being provided by people
w thout the appropriate training. He expressed support for HB
110. In response to an earlier question from Representative
Seaton, he noted that psychonetry neant psychol ogi cal testing.

3:36:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the proposed definition for
"to practice psychology" in Section 3 of HB 110, and asked if
there was anyone else offering these services. He opi ned that
it was too broad.

3:37: 33 PM

DR. BRADBURY clarified that the proposed definition was not
addressing "counseling.” He stated that the definition was for
t hose offering psychol ogical services as psychol ogi sts.

3:38:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that the proposed definition would
require a license "to practice psychol ogy." He asked for Dr.
Bradbury to interpret Section 3 of HB 110.

3:40: 29 PM

DR. BRADBURY explained that Section 3 specifically addressed
those who were licensed to practice independently. He said that
the attorneys for the American Psychol ogi cal Association (APA)
suggested the renoval of "for a fee."

3:42: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON detailed the unintended consequence of
anmending the definition of "to practice psychol ogy" by renoving
"for a fee" in Section 3 of HB 110. He offered his opinion that
everyone who had a prior exenption would now have to be a
I i censed psychol ogi st.

3:45: 25 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 19, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked i f t he di fference bet ween
psychol ogi sts and psychiatrists was the authority to prescribe
nmedi cat i on.

DR. BRADBURY agreed, and he noted that psychiatrists were
exenpted in Section 2(b)(5).

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked about ot her distinctions for
psychiatrists which were not listed in Section 3 of HB 110.

DR. BRADBURY replied that a psychiatrist does not engage in
psychol ogi cal testing.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked about the use of psychonetrics.

DR. BRADBURY agreed that both professions often used the results
of a licensed psychol ogi st to establish a diagnosis.

3:48: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA cited exanples of counseling services,
i ncl udi ng peer counseling for substance abuse and volunteers in
the prisons, which could be included in Section 2 of HB 110.
She expressed a desire for an opinion from Legislative Legal and
Research Services that these «classifications of counseling
services were not affected.

DR. BRADBURY, in response to Representative Cissna, referred to
Section 2 of the bill, proposed AS 08.86.180(b)(1), and said
that these aforenentioned were peer counselors, and were not
trained to offer psychol ogical services. He said there was not
any intent to affect these peer counsel ors.

3:53: 02 PM
REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA clarified that she neant to refer to
Section 3 of the bill, the discussion of "to practice

psychol ogy," and stated that the aforenentioned counselors were
not psychol ogi sts.

DR. BRADBURY, in response to Representative Ci ssna, reiterated
that this was the |anguage fromthe 1987 APA Mdel Act for State
Li censure of Psychol ogi sts.

3:54:25 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 19, 2009



DR. BAKER, in response to Representative Cissna, said that there
were four nental health licenses and "that all of them were
there to provide nental health care services in urban and rura
areas." He agreed that there were simlar services, which
provi ded psychological services based on training, but not
exam nati on. He explained that this was part of the origina
mental health service license. He expressed that, through the
definition of the license, it was possible to define the
practice of psychol ogy. He said that this did not restrict
provi ders, but that the specialized training allowed specific
providers to call thensel ves psychol ogi sts.

3:58: 23 PM

DR. BRADBURY read from AS 08. 86. 180(d):
Nothing in this section prohibits a licensed clinica
soci al wor ker , a licensed nmarriage or famly

therapist, or a licensed professional counselor from
hol ding out to the public by a title or description of

services incorporating the words psychoanal ysis,
psychoanal yst, psychot her apy, psychot her api st or
psychot her apeuti c.
He explained that they are exenpted. He also referred to
Section 2(b)(5) of the bill, and noted that a physician was al so
exenpt ed. He expressed that there was a great deal of overlap

anong the providers.
3:59:59 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked that the statute which Dr. Bradbury read
be included in the nenbers' packets.

4:00:19 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked about the psychol ogi cal associ at e
exam nati on

4:00: 41 PM

DR. BRADBURY, in response to Co-Chair Keller, spoke about the
two licenses the Board of Psychologists and Psychol ogical
Associ ates offered: psychologist and psychol ogical associate.
He said that both licenses required the same two-part test,

which included the Exam nation for Professional Practice in
Psychol ogy (EPPP) exam and the state |law and ethics exam He

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 19, 2009



added that this exam was in addition to the educational and
supervisorial criteria.

4:02: 24 PM

DI ANE CASTO, Prevention & Early Intervention Manager, Prevention
and Early Intervention Section, D vision of Behavioral Health,
Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS), reported that
DHSS had discussed the possible inpacts to tribal health or
mental health and concluded that HB 110 would not inpact its
services. She noted that due to the | ow nunber of psychol ogists
and associate psychologists in Al aska, the mpjority of
behavi oral health services were adequately provided by

a qualified nenber of another profession, in doing
work of a psychol ogical nature consistent wth that
person's training and consistent with the code of
ethics. ..

She offered her belief that the critical nature was for people
to practice what they had been trained. She noted that there
was training for peer counselors, behavioral health aides,
substance abuse counselors, and providers in the rural human
servi ce program She clarified that many small conmunities had
contract psychologists to do the psychological testing. She
referred to the exenption provided by the proposed AS
08.86.180(b)(4) in Section 2 of the bill.

4:07:03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Section 3 of the bill, and
asked if the proposed elimnation of "for a fee" was of concern
to DHSS. He offered his belief that this proposed change to
Section 3 would elimnate the exenption in Section 2, nentioned
above, and these persons woul d now be practicing psychol ogy.

4:08:34 PM

M5. CASTO, in response to Representative Seaton, observed that
the definition had been in law for sone tine. She pointed out
that people did provide services, regardless of a fee or not
She offered her belief that the definition in Section 3 of the
bill was referring to a specific group, identified as
psychol ogi sts. She specified that psychol ogical testing was the
specific training to differentiate the psychologists and the
counsel ors.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 19, 2009



4:11: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to Section 2(b)(4) and questioned
the use of the word "profession" instead of "occupation," as
"profession” was understood to be for a higher level of
education and training. She noted that if a service provider's
role did not have a code of ethics, then it would not be covered
under this proposed subsection.

4:13: 09 PM

CO-CHAIR KELLER asked about the set rates for reinbursement to
t he providers.

4:13: 38 PM

MS. CASTO agreed that there were set rates, but that she did not
know t he specific rates.

4:14:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA nentioned Al coholics Anonynous (AA) as a
group without formal training but with experience. She endorsed
the need for peer |evel, non-conventional provider groups. She
reiterated her earlier request for an opinion from Legislative
Legal and Research Servi ces.

4:16: 05 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER reiterated the earlier comment by Representative
Seaton that the |aw was vague, and upon change, the vaguery
became | arger.

4:17: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN observed that l|icensing indicated a |evel of
knowl edge and conpet ence.

4:19: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the renpoval of "for a fee"
changed the neaning to include anyone engaged in the activity.

4:20: 56 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 19, 2009



CO CHAIR  HERRON, in response to Representative Seaton,
reiterated the testinony of Dr. Bradbury in which he stated that
t he national association of |awers recommended it.

4:21:58 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER noted that public testinony would remain open.
[HB 110 was hel d over. ]

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN pointed out that a psychol ogi st offering pro
bono work woul d be "without a fee."

4:23:13 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 4:23 p.m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 19, 2009



